# NORTHERN FORESTRY CENTRE WOODLOT EXTENSION LIBRARY PUBLICATIONS LIST FEBRUARY 1994

1994

Canadian Forest Service Northern Forestry Centre 5320 - 122 Street Edmonton, Alberta T6H 3S5

This is a joint publication of the Canadian Forest Service and the Alberta Land and Forest Services pursuant to the Canada-Alberta Partnership Agreement in Forestry

# **DISCLAIMER**

The study on which this report is based was funded under the Canada-Alberta Partnership Agreement in Forestry.

The views, conclusions and recommendations are those of the authors. The exclusion of certain manufactured products does not necessarily imply disapproval nor does the mention of other products necessarily imply endorsement by the Canadian Forest Service or the Alberta Land and Forest Services.

٢

(c) Minister of Supply and Services Canada 1994 Catalogue No.: FO42-91/109-1994E ISBN: 0-662-22063-3

Additional copies of this publication are available at no charge from:

Canadian Forest Service
Natural Resources Canada
Northern Forestry Centre
5320 - 122nd Street
Edmonton, Alberta
T6H 3S5
Telephone: (403) 435 - 7210

or

Land and Forest Services
Alberta Environmental Protection
10th Floor, Bamalea Building
9920 - 108 Street
Edmonton, Alberta
T5K 2M4

Telephone: (403) 427 - 3551

# **ABSTRACT**

The newly established Woodlot Extension Library has acquired materials with a view to serving the information needs of landowners in Alberta, resource managers and extension workers. The materials cover a variety of topics relevant to woodlot management and are available in a variety of formats including books, handbooks and manuals, reports, journal articles, pamphlets and brochures, periodicals and video cassettes. The individual items are arranged alphabetically by author within subject categories. Video cassettes are listed separately at the end of the list. The collection of the Woodlot Extension Library is constantly growing and updates to the list will be published periodically.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
AGRICULTURE
AGROFORESTRY
BROWSE/FORAGE/GRAZING2
ECOLOGY 3
ECONOMICS/MARKETING 3
FAUNA6
FIRE6
FLORA7
FOREST EXTENSION/EDUCATION
FOREST MACHINERY/SMALL-SCALE EQUIPMENT
FOREST MANAGEMENT
FOREST MENSURATION
FOREST NURSERIES/GREENHOUSES
FOREST POLICY/FUNDING/INCENTIVES
FOREST PRODUCTS/FOREST PRODUCTS INDUSTRY
FOREST SOILS
FOREST THINNING
FUELWOOD
GAME
LAND USE
LOGGING
MAPLE SYRUP-MAKING

Page
MISCELLANEOUS
PERIODICALS
RANGELANDS
SILVICULTURE SYSTEMS
SITE PREPARATION
TAXATION
TECHNOLOGY
TREES       22         Christmas Trees       22         Diseases and Pests       25         Growth       26         Transplanting       27         Tree Crops       27         Tree Planting       28
URBAN FORESTRY
WATER RESOURCES
WEED CONTROL
WILD FOOD 30
WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT
WINDBREAKS, SHELTERBELTS, ETC
WOODLAND ROADS 32
WOODLOT MANAGEMENT
VIDEO CASSETTES

## **AGRICULTURE**

Alberta Agriculture. 1984. Continuous Cropping. Agdex 516-2. Edmonton, Alta.

Alberta Agriculture, Food and Rural Development, Farm Business Management Branch; Ontario Ministry of Agriculture and Food. 1993. 1993 Agricultural Software Directory. Agdex 818-37. Edmonton, Alta.; Toronto, Ont.

Arnold, J.; Van Donkersgoed, E. 1992. Livestock and Poultry Waste Management. Ontario Ministry of Agriculture and Food, Toronto, Ont.; Agriculture Canada, Ottawa, Ont. Best Management Practices Series.

Bauslaugh, L. et al. 1992. Horticultural Crops. Ontario Ministry of Agriculture and Food, Toronto, Ont.; Agriculture Canada, Ottawa, Ont. Best Management Practices Series.

Gasser, P.-Y. et al. 1992. Field Crop Production. Ontario Ministry of Agriculture and Food, Toronto, Ont.; Agriculture Canada, Ottawa, Ont. Best Management Practices Series.

Graham, A.; Taylor, T. 1992. A First Look: Practical Solutions for Soil and Water Problems. Ontario Ministry of Agriculture and Food, Toronto, Ont.; Agriculture Canada, Ottawa, Ont. Best Management Practices Series.

Neumann, M. 1993. Farm Forestry and Habitat Management. Ontario Ministry of Agriculture and Food, Toronto, Ont.; Agriculture Canada, Ottawa, Ont. Best Management Practices Series.

# **Irrigation**

Alberta Agriculture. 1987. What is Trickle Irrigation? Agdex 568-3. Edmonton, Alta.

Alberta Agriculture. 1989. Trickle Irrigation for Tree Nurseries. Agdex 568-2. Revised ed. Edmonton, Alta.

Alberta Agriculture. 1991. Trickle Irrigation for Home Gardens and Shelterbelts. Agdex 568-1. Revised ed. Edmonton, Alta.

Pacific Northwest Extension Service. 1986. Sizing Irrigation Mainlines and Fittings. Extension Publication.

# **AGROFORESTRY**

Bandolin, T.H.; Fisher, R.F. "Agroforestry Systems in North America." Agroforestry Systems 16 (2): 95-118, 1991.

Carruthers, P. "The Prospects for Agroforestry: An EC Perspective." *Outlook on Agriculture* 19 (3): 147-153, September 1990.

Coxworth, E. 1991. Agroforestry for Western Canada: Multiple Row Shelterbelts that Produce Timber and Other Products for Sale as well as Providing Protection for Annual and Perennial Crops. Saskatchewan Research Council, Saskatoon, Sask. Publication No. R-1520-3-E-91.

Garrett, H.E., editor. 1992. The 2nd Conference on Agroforestry in North America. University of Missouri, School of Natural Resources, Columbia, Mo.

Gholz, H.L., editor. 1987. Agroforestry: Realities, Possibilities and Potentials. Kluwer Academic Publishers, Boston, Mass.

Gold, M.A.; Hanover, J.W. "Agroforestry Systems for the Temperate Zone." *Agroforestry Systems* 5 (2): 109-121, 1987.

Kidd, C.V.; Pimental, D., editors. 1992. Integrated Resource Management: Agroforestry for Development. Academic Press, San Diego, Calif.

Logan, R.S. 1993. "Agro-Forestry: Growing Trees, Forage and Livestock Together." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1114. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Lundgren, B. "What is Agroforestry?" Agroforestry Systems 1 (1): 7-12, 1976.

University of Guelph. Agroforestry: Returning Trees to Ontario Farmers. Guelph, Ont.

Young, A. 1989. Agroforestry for Soil Conservation. CAB International, Wallingford, England.

# **BROWSE/FORAGE/GRAZING**

Adams, S.N. "Sheep and Cattle in Forests: A Review." Journal of Applied Ecology 12 (1): 143-152, 1975.

Bailey, A.W. "Barrier Effect of the Shrub *Elaeagnus commutata* on Grazing Cattle and Forage Production in Central Alberta." *Journal of Range Management* 23 (4): 248-251, July 1970.

Fitzgerald, R.D.; Hudson, R.J.; Bailey, A.W. "Grazing Preferences of Cattle in Regenerating Aspen Forest." *Journal of Range Management* 39 (1): 13-18, January 1986.

Garrison, G.A. "Effects of Clipping on Some Range Shrubs." *Journal of Range Management* 6: 309-317, 1953.

Hilton, J.E.; Bailey, A.W. "Cattle Use of a Sprayed Aspen Parkland Range." *Journal of Range Management* 25 (4): 257-260, July 1972.

Hilton, J.E.; Bailey, A.W. "Forage Production and Utilization in a Sprayed Aspen Forest in Alberta." *Journal of Range Management* 27 (5): 375-380, September 1974.

Kosco, B.H.; Bartolome, J.W. "Effects of Cattle and Deer on Regenerating Mixed Conifer Clearcuts." *Journal of Range Management* 36 (2): 265-268, March 1983.

Kosco, B.H.; Bartolome, J.W. "Grazing Mixed Conifer Forests." *California Agriculture* 32 (5): 5-7, May 1978.

Krueger, W.C. "Cattle Grazing in Managed Forests." In *Forestland Grazing*. 1983. Roche, B.F.; Baumgartner, D.M., editors. Washington State University, Pullman, Wa.: 29-42.

McLean, A.; Clark, M.B. "Grass, Trees and Cattle on Clearcut-Logged Areas." *Journal of Range Management* 33 (3): 213-217, May 1980.

Miller, R.F.; Krueger, W.C. "Cattle Use on Summer Foothill Rangelands in Northeastern Oregon." Journal of Range Management 29 (5): 367-371, September 1976.

Richmond, R.M. "Problems and Opportunities of Forestland Grazing in the Pacific Northwest." In *Forestland Grazing*. 1983. Roche, B.F.; Baumgartner, D.M., editors. Washington State University, Pullman, Wa.: 71-73.

Roath, L.R.; Krueger, W.C. "Cattle Grazing and Behaviour on a Forested Range." *Journal of Range Management* 35 (3): 332-339, May 1982.

Roath, L.R.; Krueger, W.C. "Cattle Grazing Influence on a Mountain Riparian Zone." *Journal of Range Management* 35 (1): 100-104, January 1982.

Wallace, T. "Forage Producing Potentials in Clearcut Lodgepole Pine Types." In *Forestland Grazing*. 1983. Roche, B.F.; Baumgartner, D.M., editors. Washington State University, Pullman, Wa.: 75-78.

Westell, C.E., Jr. "Available Browse Following Aspen Logging in Lower Michigan." Journal of Wildlife Management 18 (2): 266-271, April 1954.

## **ECOLOGY**

Lash, G.H. 1966. A Walk in the Forest. Canadian Pulp and Paper Association, Montreal, Que.

Minckler, L.S. 1980. Woodland Ecology: Environmental Forestry for the Small Owner. 2nd ed. Syracuse University Press, Syracuse, N.Y.

Watkins, C., editor. 1993. Ecological Effects of Afforestation: Studies in the History and Ecology of Afforestation in Western Europe. CAB International, Wallingford, England.

# **ECONOMICS/MARKETING**

Alberta Agriculture. 1983. Basing Grazing Fees on the Cost of Maintaining Pastures. Agdex 821-19. Edmonton, Alta.

Alberta Agriculture, Food and Rural Development, Production Economics Branch. 1993. The Economics of Honey Production. Agdex 821-62. Edmonton, Alta.

Anderson, A.W. 1988. Opportunity Cost Analysis of Habitat Retention in Irrigation Districts of Southern Alberta. University of Alberta, Dept. of Agricultural Engineering, Edmonton, Alta.

Blinn, C.R. "Maximizing Profitability of Harvesting Systems." Forest Industries 115 (10): 26-29, October 1988.

Cleaves, D.A. 1993. "Marketing Alder and Other Hardwoods." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1377. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Cleaves, D.A. 1993. "Selling Timber and Logs: Seven Steps to Success." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1384. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

DeFranceschi, J.P.; Bell, F.W. 1990. Labour Productivity and Costs of Motor-Manual Release of Spruce from Hardwoods in Manitoba. Forestry Canada, Northwest Region, Northern Forestry Centre, Edmonton, Alta. Information Report NOR-X-312.

Elwood, N.E.; Courter, R. 1993. "Log Exports and the Nonindustrial Private Forest Owner: An Overview of Operations and Markets." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1141. Revised ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Elwood, N.E.; McMahon, R.O. 1993. "Forestry Financial Analysis I: An Introduction for Landowners." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1146. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Elwood, N.E.; McMahon, R.O. 1993. "Forestry Financial Analysis II: Worksheets for How-To-Do-It." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1147. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Elwood, N.E.; McMahon, R.O. 1993. "Forestry Financial Analysis III: How to Compare Two (or More) Investments." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1148. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Ezell, A. "Wise Forest Investments with Limited Dollars." Forest Farmer 49 (9): 15-16, 18, July-August 1990.

Fautley, R. 1988. "Economic Returns to Private Woodlots Utilizing Aspen for Sale in Pulping." Forestry or Agriculture: A Case for Diversification. Canadian Forestry Service, Victoria, B.C. Canada-B.C. Forest Resource Development Agreement (FRDA) Report 042: 46-49.

Fiddler, G.O.; McDonald, P.M. "Manual Release Contracting: Production Rates, Costs and Future." Western Journal of Applied Forestry 5 (3): 83-85, 1990.

Fletcher, R. 1993. "Cost Sharing and Woodland Management." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1119. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Fogh, I.F. 1980. Cost Concepts in Wood Operations. Maritime Forest Range School, Fredericton, N.B.

Gillespie, D.W. 1991. Review of the Small Business Forest Enterprise Program and Woodlot Program: Report to the Minister of Forests. Webber and Co., Kamloops, B.C.

Massie, M.R.C. 1990. Economic Strategy for Managing Aspen on Private Lands in Northeast British Columbia. Forestry Canada, Pacific Forestry Centre, Victoria, B.C. Canada-B.C. Forest Resource Development Agreement (FRDA) Report 124.

Messmer, M. 1990. An Economic Analysis of Wood Production on Private Forest Land in West Central Alberta. University of Alberta, Dept. of Rural Economy, Edmonton, Alta. Project Report No. 90-07.

Messmer, M. et al. 1990. Economic Analysis of Wood Supply from Private Land in Alberta. University of Alberta, Dept. of Rural Economy, Edmonton, Alta. Canada-Alberta Forest Resource Development Agreement (FRDA) Project #23908-88.

Mills, W.L., Jr.; Hoover, W.L. "Investment in Forest Land: Aspects of Risk and Diversification." *Land Economics* 58 (1): 33-51, February 1982.

Ondro, W.J. 1989. *Utilization and Market Potential of Poplar in Alberta*. Forestry Canada, Northern Forestry Centre, Edmonton, Alta. Information Report NOR-X-305.

Ondro, W.J. 1991. Economics of 15 Options for Industrial Utilization of Poplars. Forestry Canada, Northwest Region, Northern Forestry Centre, Edmonton, Alta. Information Report NOR-X-320.

Rosen, B.N.; Kaiser, H.F. "Marketing Forest Management to Nonindustrial Private Forest Landowners: A Field Experiment." *Northern Journal of Applied Forestry* 5 (4): 240-245, December 1988.

Sizemore, W.R. "The Timberland Owner's Persistent Question: What is it Worth?" Forest Farmer 48 (7): 8-9, 24-25, May 1989.

Thomas, M.G. 1988. Profiles in Rural Economic Development: A Guidebook of Selected Successful Rural Area Initiatives. Midwest Research Institute, Kansas City, Mo.

Thomas, M.G. 1990. Recouple: Natural Resource Strategies for Rural Economic Development. Midwest Research Institute, Kansas City, Mo.

Turner, T.L.; Huyler, N.K.; Bousquet, D.W. "Farmer Tractor Skidding Costs in Relation to Profitability of a Fuelwood Harvesting System." *Northern Journal of Applied Forestry* 5 (3): 207-210, September 1988.

University of Georgia Cooperative Extension Service. 1988. Ten Steps to Selling Your Timber. Circular 779. Athens, Ga.

University of New Hampshire Cooperative Extension Service. 1984. Woodland Account Book: A Basic Record Keeping System for the Private Woodland Owner. Extension Publication No. 30. Revised ed. Durham, N.H.

Veeman, T.S.; Adamowicz, W.L.; Phillips, W.E. 1989. A Canadian Conservation Reserve Program: An Economic Perspective. University of Alberta, Dept. of Rural Economy, Edmonton, Alta. Staff paper No. 89-12.

Visser, P. 1985. A Study of Land Development Costs in the Peace River Region 1984. Alberta Agriculture, Production and Resource Economics Branch, Edmonton, Alta. Agdex 822-3.

Washington State University Cooperative Extension. 1981. "Marketing Woodland Products." Extension Bulletin 0964. (Forest Stewardship).

Washington State University Cooperative Extension. 1981. "Timber Sale Agreements." Extension Bulletin 0961. (Forest Stewardship).

Wengert, E.M. 1988. *Utilization and Marketing Opportunities for Alberta Aspen Solid Wood Products*. Forestry Canada, Northern Forestry Centre; Alberta Forest Service, Edmonton, Alta. Canada-Alberta Forest Resource Development Agreement (FRDA) Project #1471-45.

Wiant, H.V., Jr. 1989. How to Estimate the Value of Timber in Your Woodlot. West Virginia University, Agricultural and Forestry Experiment Station, Morgantown, W. Va. Circular 148.

Williams, D.H.; Gasson, R. 1986. Economic Stock of Timber in the Coastal Region of British Columbia. University of British Columbia, Forest Economics and Policy Analysis Branch, Vancouver, B.C. Project Report No. 86-11, Vol. I.

Wuttunee, W.A. 1992. In Business for Ourselves: Northern Entrepreneurs: Fifteen Case Studies of Successful Small Northern Businesses. McGill-Queen's University Press, Montreal, Que.

# **FAUNA**

Dobson, C. 1991. Feeding Wild Birds in Winter. Firefly Books, Willowdale, Ont.

Environment Canada, Canadian Wildlife Service. 1990. Bird Feeding. Edmonton, Alta.

Gleisner, D. 1990. "Nest Boxes for Birds." Reprinted ed. Washington Dept. of Wildlife, Urban Wildlife Series. (Forest Stewardship).

Kuhnke, D.H., editor. 1993. Birds in the Boreal Forest: Proceedings of a Workshop held March 10-12, 1992 in Prince Albert, Saskatchewan. Forestry Canada, Northwest Region, Northern Forestry Centre, Edmonton, Alta.

Windberg, L.A.; Keith, L.B. "Snowshoe Hare Populations in Woodlot Habitat." Canadian Journal of Forest Research 56 (5): 1071-1080, 1978.

## FIRE

Brown, J.K.; DeByle, N.V. "Fire Damage, Mortality and Suckering in Aspen." Canadian Journal of Forest Research 17 (9): 1100-1109, September 1987.

Canada Regional Economic Expansion; N.B. Dept. of Natural Resources. Woodlot Fire Prevention. Fredericton, N.B.

Colorado State Forest Service. Home Fire Protection in the Wildland Urban Interface. Fort Collins, Colo.

Colorado State Forest Service. Wildlife Protection in the Wildland Urban Interface. Fort Collins, Colo.

Davis, Schrock & Co., editor. 1990. "Home Protection Guide: Before Wildfire Hits Your Home." Washington State Dept. of Natural Resources. (Forest Stewardship).

Quintilio, D.; Alexander, M.E.; Ponto, R.L. 1991. Spring Fires in a Semimature Trembling Aspen Stand in Central Alberta. Forestry Canada, Northwest Region, Northern Forestry Centre, Edmonton, Alta. Information Report NOR-X-323.

# **FLORA**

Alberta Agriculture. 1986. Alberta Range Plants and Their Classification. Agdex 134/6. Edmonton, Alta.

Ellison, L; Houston, W.R. "Production of Herbaceous Vegetation in Openings and Under Canopies of Western Aspen." *Ecology* 39 (2): 337-345, April 1958.

Washington State University Cooperative Extension. "Some Flora of Pend Oreille County, Washington." (Forest Stewardship).

# FOREST EXTENSION/EDUCATION

Bunnell, P. 1988. Guidelines for Forestry Extension. Canadian Forestry Service, Pacific Forestry Centre, Victoria, B.C. Canada-B.C. Economic and Regional Development Agreement (FRDA) Report 046.

Fletcher, R. 1993. "Educational Assistance for Woodland Owners." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1154. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Joint FAO/ECE/ILO Committee on Forest Working Techniques and Training of Forest Workers. 1988. Extension Activities for Owners of Small Woodlands (Woodlots): The Proceedings of the Seminar held at Fredericton, N.B. 28 September - 1 October 1987. Canadian Forestry Service, Maritimes, Fredericton, N.B.

Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources. 1991. Help...For Landowners Who Want to Branch Out. Toronto, Ont.

Shearer, M.; Fletcher, R. 1993. "Technical Assistance in Forestry." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1120. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Thomas, M.G. 1989. A Portfolio of Community College Initiatives in Rural Economic Development. Midwest Research Institute, Kansas City, Mo.

Washington State University Cooperative Extension. 1991. "Extension Forestry Agents and State Extension Foresters." (Forest Stewardship).

Washington State University Cooperative Extension. "Forestry Education and Assistance Programs for Washington Forest Landowners." Extension Bulletin 1286. (Forest Stewardship).

Wilson, D. 1989. Updates from Representatives of the 22nd Annual Woodlot Extension Specialist Seminar. New Brunswick Dept. of Natural Resources and Energy, Forest Extension Service, Fredericton, N.B. Operational Note 1989-03.

# FOREST MACHINERY/SMALL-SCALE EQUIPMENT

Backe, J. et al. 1978. Scarification. Logging Research Foundation of Sweden, Stockholm, Sweden.

Brown, T.D.; Elwood, N.E. 1993. "Acquiring and Using a Portable Sawmill." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1250. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Canada Regional Economic Expansion; N.B. Dept. of Natural Resources. 1980. Directional Felling with the Clearing Saw. Fredericton, N.B.

FERIC. 1989. Choosing a Wheeled Shortwood Forwarder. Field Note No. Skidding/Forwarding-8. Vancouver, B.C.

FERIC. 1989. Timberjack 230 8-Ton Forwarder. Field Note No. Skidding/Forwarding-9. Vancouver, B.C.

FERIC. 1990. The 4.3-m Portable Beam Bridge. Field Note No. Roads and Bridges-23. Vancouver, B.C.

FERIC. 1990. The 6.1-m Portable Beam Bridge. Field Note No. Roads and Bridges-24. Vancouver, B.C.

FERIC. 1990. Deyle Firewood Splitter-Conveyor. Field Note No. Processing-17. Vancouver, B.C.

FERIC. 1990. Installation of a 3-Pt. Hitch and PTO on a Used Skidder. Field Note No. General-12. Vancouver, B.C.

FERIC. 1990. The Scottway Timberskid Prototype. Field Note No. Skidding/Forwarding-10. Vancouver, B.C.

FERIC. 1990. Skid 'n' Winch Hydraulic Farm Tractor Mounted Winch. Field Note No. Skidding/Forwarding-12. Vancouver, B.C.

Giardina, L.J. 1992. Build a Solar Wood Dryer. Reprinted ed. Oregon State University Extension Service. Corvallis, Ore.

Husqvarna Sweden. Husqvarna Forestry Techniques for Clearing Saws. Stockholm, Sweden.

New Brunswick Dept. of Natural Resources and Energy. 1988. Harvesting Trees from Thinnings Using Small Winches. Reprinted ed. Fredericton, N.B.

New Brunswick Forest Extension Service. Farm Tractor Accessories for Woodlot Harvesting: An Overview. Technical Note No. 1988:02. Fredericton, N.B.

New Brunswick Forest Extension Service, Forest Training Unit. 1971. Work Technique for Grapple Loaders. Fredericton, N.B.

Nova Scotia Dept. of Lands and Forests; Forestry Canada. 1991. Productivity of a Valmet 901 Single-Grip Harvester in Merchantable Thinnings. Forest Research Report No. 27. Truro, N.S.

Stihl, A. 1991. Brushcutter Safety Manual. STIHL, Waiblingen, Germany.

Swedish National Board of Forestry. 1982. The Farm Tractor in the Forest. Jonkoping, Sweden.

University of Maine at Orono Cooperative Extension Service. Woodlot Harvesting with a Small Tractor. Forestry Notes. Orono, Me.

Wengert, E.M. 1987. Evaluation of Kiln Drying Characteristics of 8/4 Canadian Aspen Lumber in a Commercial Kiln. Forestry Canada, Northern Forestry Centre, Edmonton, Alta. Canada-Alberta Forest Resource Development Agreement (FRDA) Project #2758-2.

Wilson, D. "Skidding with the Garrett Tree Farmer." Timber of Canada 21 (6): 43-49, June 1960.

Woodard, S. 1993. "Tools for Measuring Your Forest." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1129. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

### Chainsaws

Brunberg, B.; Gardh, R.; Lindgren, P. 1984. Chainsaws: Maintenance and Sharpening. Forest Operations Institute of Sweden, Spanga, Sweden.

Canada Regional Economic Expansion; N.B. Dept. of Natural Resources. The Chainsaw for the Casual User. Fredericton, N.B.

Ontario Forest Products Accident Prevention Association. The Cutting Edge: Chainsaw Safety Handbook - Practical Methods and Procedures for Safe Power Saw Operations. North Bay, Ont.

Ontario Forest Products Accident Prevention Association. 1992. Saw Chain Sharpening & Maintenance. Revised ed. North Bay, Ont.

Ontario Forest Products Accident Prevention Association. 1993. Safe Chainsaw Handling. North Bay, Ont.

Pacific Northwest Extension Service. 1983. "Safe Chainsaw Operation." Extension Publication PNW 228. (Forest Stewardship).

Swedish National Board of Forestry. 1982. The Chainsaw: Use and Maintenance. 3rd ed. Revised ed. Johkoping, Sweden.

# FOREST MANAGEMENT

Bondi, M.C.; Emmingham, W.H. 1993. "Converting Western Oregon Red Alder Stands to Productive Conifer Forests." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1186. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Booth, D.L. et al. 1993. Natural Forest Landscape Management: A Strategy for Canada. Wildlife Habitat Canada, Ottawa, Ont.

British Columbia Ministry of Forests, Recreation Management Branch. 1981. Forest Landscape Handbook. Victoria, B.C.

Campbell, A. 1993. "An Introduction to Forest Protection." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1253. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook/Forest Stewardship*).

Forest Management Programs of the Canada-Nova Scotia Cooperation Agreement for Forestry Development. 1991. Manual of Procedures and Standards: Administration.

Forest Management Programs of the Canada-Nova Scotia Cooperation Agreement for Forestry Development. 1991. Manual of Procedures and Standards: Technical.

Hibbs, D.E. 1993. "Managing Hardwood Stands for Timber Production." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1183. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Samoil, J., editor. 1988. Management and Utilization of Northern Mixedwoods: Proceedings of a Symposium held April 11-14, 1988 in Edmonton, Alberta. Canadian Forestry Service, Northern Forestry Centre, Edmonton, Alta. Information Report NOR-X-296.

Steneker, G.A. 1976. Guide to the Silvicultural Management of Trembling Aspen in the Prairie Provinces. Environment Canada, Canadian Forestry Service, Northern Forest Research Centre, Edmonton, Alta. Information Report NOR-X-164.

Washington State University Cooperative Extension. "Forest Practices, Timber/Fish/Wildlife, and You!" (Forest Stewardship).

Washington State University Cooperative Extension, College of Agriculture and Home Economics. 1991. "Managing Forestlands in Washington: An Illustrated Guide for Forest Stewardship." MISC0138. Revised ed. (*Forest Stewardship*).

# FOREST MENSURATION

Bell, J.F. 1982. "Measuring Trees." Pacific Northwest Extension Service. Extension Publication PNW 31. Reprinted ed. (*Forest Stewardship*).

Fletcher, R.A.; Emmingham, W.H.; Woodard, S. 1993. "Stand Volume and Growth: Getting the Numbers." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1190. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Oester, P. 1993. "Measuring Timber Products Harvested from Your Woodland." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1127. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

# FOREST NURSERIES/GREENHOUSES

Alberta Agriculture; Alberta Horticultural Advisory Committee. 1991. Alberta Horticultural Guide. Agdex 200/01. Reprinted ed. Edmonton, Alta.

Baumgartner, D.M.; Hanley, D.P. 1992. "Forest Tree Nurseries in Washington and Adjacent States." Washington State University Cooperative Extension. Extension Bulletin 0790. Reprinted ed. (*Forest Stewardship*).

Carlson, L.W. 1983. Guidelines for Rearing Containerized Conifer Seedlings in the Prairie Provinces. Environment Canada, Canadian Forestry Service, Northern Forest Research Centre, Edmonton, Alta. Information Report NOR-X-214E. Revised ed.

Edwards, I.K., compiler. 1989. Proceedings of the 1987 Prairie Federal-Provincial Nurserymen's Meeting held September 8-10, 1987 in Indian Head, Saskatchewan. Forestry Canada, Northern Forestry Centre, Edmonton, Alta. Information Report NOR-X-307.

Mohyuddin, M. et al. 1989. Hobby Greenhouses in Alberta. Alberta Agriculture. Agdex No. 731-5. Revised ed.

Pacific Northwest Cooperative Extension Service. 1981. Raising Forest Tree Seedlings at Home. Extension Publication PNW 96.

USDA Forest Service, Rocky Mountain Forest and Range Experiment Station. 1993. Proceedings: Western Forest Nursery Association, September 14-18, 1992, Fallen Leaf Lake, Ca. RM-GTR-221. Fort Collins, Colo.

# FOREST POLICY/FUNDING/INCENTIVES

Adams, P.W. 1993. "Oregon's Forest Practice Rules." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1194. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Barlowe, R. 1990. "Who Owns Your Land?" Mississippi Southern Rural Development Centre. (Forest Stewardship).

Bliss, J.C.; Martin, A.J. "How Tree Farmers View Management Incentives." *Journal of Forestry* 88 (8): 23-29, 42, August 1990.

Brabander, H.D. "Subsidies and Efficiency in Forestry Co-operatives." Silva Fennica 15 (1): 79-84, 1981.

Grayson, A.J. 1993. Private Forestry Policy in Western Europe. CAB International, Wallingford, England.

Green, M. 1990. Private Woodlots: Considerations for Future Action. N.B. Dept. of Natural Resources and Energy. Fredericton, N.B.

Hopwood, A. "Discussion Paper on the Regulation of Private Land Forestry in British Columbia." Forest Planning Canada 7 (1): 32-33, January-February 1991.

Insley, H. "Incentives for Private Forestry in Great Britain." In Multipurpose Agriculture and Forestry. 1987. Merlo, M. et al, editors. Wissenschaftsverlag Vauk Kiel, Kiel, Germany: 455-463. (Proceedings of the 11th Seminar of the European Association of Agricultural Economists (EAAE) 28 April-3 May 1986).

Luckert, M.K.; Haley, D. "The Implications of Various Silvicultural Funding Arrangements for Privately Managed Public Forest Land in Canada." New Forest 4 (1): 1-12, 1990.

Nadeau, J.-P.; Frechette, J.-G.; Roy, M. 1990. Apercu General des Programmes D'Aide aux Forets Privees dans Certains Autres Pays. Direction de la Foret Privee et des Cooperatives Forestieres.

Prairie Farm Rehabilitation Administration, Shelterbelt Centre. Prairie Farm Rehabilitation Administration Serving the Prairies: Prairie Resource Services Policy. Indian Head, Sask.

Reed, F.L.C. 1988. The Forgotten Forest: A New Policy Framework for the Small Private Forests in Canada. Prepared for the National Woodlot Owners Forum, Fredericton July 26-27, 1988.

Tanaka, S. "Forest Cooperatives as a Policy Measure for Small Woodlands." Silva Fennica 15 (1): 73-78, 1981.

Terrestrial & Aquatic Environmental Managers Ltd. 1993. Policy Review and Recommendations for the Farm Woodlot Industry in Saskatchewan: Executive Summary. Prepared for the Farm Woodlot Association of Saskatchewan; funded by Canada-Saskatchewan Partnership Agreement in Forestry.

# FOREST PRODUCTS/FOREST PRODUCTS INDUSTRY

Bamsey, C.R. 1993. Directory of Primary Wood-Using Industries in Alberta 1992. Forestry Canada, Northern Forestry Centre; Environmental Protection, Alberta Forest Service, Edmonton, Alta.

Blouin, G. "Alternative Markets and Specialty Products from Private Woodlots." Silvilog '88 Conferences. Forestry Canada, Quebec Region, Sainte-Foy, Que., 1989: 97-109.

Bohning, R.A.; Rounds, R.C. 1992. Directory of Secondary Wood-Using Industries in Manitoba 1991. Forestry Canada, Manitoba District Office; Manitoba Natural Resources, Forestry Branch, Winnipeg, Man.

Brommeland, R.S.; Bohning, R.A. 1993. Directory of Secondary Wood-Using Industries in Alberta 1992. Forestry Canada, Northern Forestry Centre; Environmental Protection, Alberta Forest Service, Edmonton, Alta.

Canadian Forestry Service. 1986. Fencing. Woodlot Products Fact Sheet 2.

Foal Enterprises Inc. 1987. Aspen Shingles and Shakes in Alberta. Forestry Canada, Northern Forestry Centre; Alberta Forest Service, Edmonton, Alta. Canada-Alberta Forest Resource Development Agreement (FRDA) Project #T1B42-22.

Giles, D.R.; Bohning, R.A. 1992. Directory of Primary Wood-Using Industries in Manitoba 1991. Forestry Canada, Manitoba District Office; Manitoba Natural Resources, Forestry Branch, Winnipeg, Man.

Giles, D.R.; Gagne, D.; Bohning, R.A. 1993. Directory of Primary Wood-Using Industries in Saskatchewan 1992. Forestry Canada, Saskatchewan District Office; Saskatchewan Environment and Resource Management, Prince Albert, Sask.

Gillespie, D.W. 1991. Program Review: Small Business Forest Enterprise Program and Woodlot Program. Report to the British Columbia Minister of Forests. Victoria, B.C.

Harding, L.R. 1989. N.I.P.F. Wood Supply Description and Analysis. Saskatchewan Farm Woodlot Association. Prince Albert, Sask.

Nova Scotia Dept. of Lands and Forests; Canadian Forestry Service. 1988. Small Scale Chipping Trials in Nova Scotia. Forest Research Report No. 7. Truro, N.S.

Patenaude, P.; Bohning, R.A. 1993. Directory of Secondary Wood-Using Industries in Saskatchewan. Forestry Canada, Saskatchewan District Office; Saskatchewan Environment and Resource Management, Forestry Branch, Prince Albert, Sask.

Schlosser, W.E.; Blatner, K.A.; Baumgartner, D.M. 1991. "Special Forest Products Buyers/Processors in the Pacific Northwest and Coastal British Columbia." Washington State University Cooperative Extension Service. Extension Bulletin 1580. Revised ed. (*Forest Stewardship*).

Silvacom Ltd. 1988. Shingles and Shakes From Alberta Jack Pine and Aspen: A Feasibility Study. Forestry Canada; Alberta Forest Service, Edmonton, Alta. Canada-Alberta Forest Resource Development Agreement (FRDA) Project #16901-53.

Thomas, M.; Schumann, D. 1992. Seeing the Forest Instead of the Trees: Income Opportunities in Special Forest Products. Midwest Research Institute, Kansas City, Mo.

Washington State University Cooperative Extension Service. 1990. "Forest and Forest Products Data: Washington State." Extension Bulletin 1557. (Forest Stewardship).

Washington Woodland Council. 1990. "Poles and Piling." Washington State University Cooperative Extension Service. Extension Bulletin 0689. Reprinted ed. (Forest Stewardship).

# FOREST SOILS

Adams, P.W. 1993. "Soil and Water Conservation: An Introduction for Woodland Owners." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1143. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Adams, P.W. 1993. "Soil Compaction on Woodland Properties." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1109. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Adams, P.W.; Froelich, H.A. 1984. "Compaction of Forest Soils." Pacific Northwest Extension Publication PNW 217 (Forest Stewardship).

British Columbia Ministry of Forests and Lands. 1987. Better Harvesting Practices for Protecting Forest Soil. Victoria, B.C.

Sidle, R.C. 1980. "Impacts of Forest Practices on Surface Erosion." Pacific Northwest Extension Service. Publication 209. (Forest Stewardship).

Sidle, R.C. 1980. "Slope Stability on Forest Land." Pacific Northwest Extension Publication Service. PNW 209. (Forest Stewardship).

Toogood, J.A. 1989. Story of Soil and Water Conservation in Alberta. Alberta Agriculture; Agriculture Canada. Agdex 570-2. Edmonton, Alta.; Ottawa, Ont.

# FOREST THINNING

Brace, L.G.; Stewart, D.J. "Careful Thinning can Preserve Amenities and Increase Yield." Pulp and Paper Magazine of Canada 75 (8): 36-42, August 1974.

Davidson, W.H. "Hybrid Poplar Sprout Clumps: Thinning Does Not Improve Development." *Journal of Forestry* 81 (10): 662-3, October 1983.

Hoffman, B.F., Jr.; Wedge, D.C.; Gadzik, C.J. "Scandinavian Thinning Techniques in a Natural Northeastern Softwood Stand." *Northern Journal of Applied Forestry* 4 (1): 38-42, March 1987.

Murray, T.S.; Cameron, M.D., editors. 1987. Proceedings of the Precommercial Thinning Workshop held at the Hugh John Flemming Forestry Centre, Fredericton, N.B., March 19, 1987. Canadian Forestry Service, Maritimes, Fredericton, N.B.

New Brunswick Dept. of Natural Resources and Energy. 1987. A Guide to Thinning Young Stands. Fredericton, N.B.

Nova Scotia Dept. of Lands and Forests; Forestry Canada. 1989. Worker Productivity in Merchantable Thinning, Shelterwood and Remnant Removal Operations. Forest Research Report No. 16. Truro, N.S.

Nova Scotia Dept. of Lands and Forests; Forestry Canada. 1993. Worker Productivity in Commercial Thinnings. Forest Research Report No. 44. Truro, N.S.

Oester, P.T.; Emmingham, W.H. 1993. "Using Precommercial Thinning to Enhance Woodland Productivity." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1189. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Workers' Compensation Board of British Columbia. 1992. Forest Management - Juvenile Spacing: A Manual of Standard Practices. Richmond, B.C.

# **FUELWOOD**

Bartok, J.W., Jr.; Palmer, E.L. 1981. Safe Wood and Coal Stove Installation Checklist. Revised ed. Northeast Regional Agricultural Engineering Service.

Energy, Mines and Resources Canada, Forest Industry Renewable Energy (FIRE) Program Secretariat. 1984. Bioenergy: The FIRE Story. Ottawa, Ont.

Environment Canada, Environment Protection Service; Environment New Brunswick; P.E.I. Dept. of Community & Cultural Affairs; N.S. Dept. of the Environment; Newfoundland Dept. of the Environment. Safe Wood Burning: A Guide to Reducing Air Pollution and Fire Hazards.

Forestry Canada; Nova Scotia Dept. of Lands and Forests. A Guide to Measuring Stacked Firewood. Truro, N.S.

Giardina, L.J. 1992. Burn Dry Firewood for Safer, Cleaner Burning and Efficiency. Reprinted ed. Oregon State University Extension Service, Corvallis, Ore.

Giardina, L.J. 1992. Operate and Maintain your Wood Stove for Safer, Cleaner Burning and Efficiency. Reprinted ed. Oregon State University Extension Service, Corvallis, Ore.

Kutscha, N.P.; Cady, R.H. Splitting Firewood. University of Maine at Orono Cooperative Extension Service, Orono, Me. Forestry Note.

Lassoie, J.P.; Baker, L.D. 1979. *Heating with Wood*. Revised ed. Northeast Regional Agricultural Engineering Service.

Lilley, W.D. Wood Stove Safety. University of Maine at Orono Cooperative Extension Service. Bulletin 662.

Maine Office of Energy Resources; Maine Forest Service, Dept. of Conservation. 1980. Consumer's Guide to Buying Firewood.

Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources. 1990. Improving Your Woodlot by Cutting Firewood. Toronto, Ont.

Puettman, K.; Hibbs, D.E. 1993. "Fuelwood Management: Opportunities and Options." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1254. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

United States Fire Administration, Federal Emergency Management Agency. 1980. Warm up Wood Safely. Washington, D.C.

University of Maine at Orono Cooperative Extension Service; N.B. Dept. of Natural Resources, Forest Extension Service. Appropriate Technology Fuelwood Harvesting. Orono, Me.; Fredericton, N.B.

# **GAME**

Lonner, T.N.; Mackie, R.J. "On the Nature of Competition Between Big Game and Livestock." In *Forestland Grazing*. 1983. Roche, B.F.; Baumgartner, D.M., editors. Washington State University, Pullman, Wa.: 53-58.

Renecker, L.A.; Blyth, C.B.; Gates, C.C. "Game Production in Western Canada." In Wildlife Production Systems. 1989. Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, Mass.: 248-267.

Telfer, E.S.; Scotter, G.W. "Potential for Game Ranching in Boreal Aspen Forests of Western Canada." Journal of Range Management 28 (3): 172-180, May 1975.

#### LAND USE

Armstrong, G.W.; Phillips, W.E. "The Optimal Timing of Land Use Changes from Forestry to Agriculture." Canadian Journal of Agricultural Economics 37 (1): 125-134, March 1989.

Canada-B.C. Forest Resource Development Agreement. 1988. Forestry or Agriculture: A Case for Diversification. Canadian Forestry Service, Pacific Forestry Centre, Victoria, B.C. Canada-B.C. Forest Resource Development Agreement (FRDA) Report 042.

Gordon, A.M.; Williams, P.A. "Intercropping Valuable Hardwood Tree Species and Agricultural Crops." *Agrologist* 17 (3): 12-14, Summer 1988.

Johnston, J. 1988. "Diversification of Agriculture in Saskatchewan: Some Selected Examples." Forestry or Agriculture: A Case for Diversification. Canadian Forestry Service, Pacific Forestry Centre, Victoria, B.C. Canada-B.C. Forest Resource Development Agreement (FRDA) Report 042: 50-51.

Phillips, W.E. et al. "Opportunity Cost of Forest Land Losses to Agricultural Uses: An Alberta Case Study." *The Forestry Chronicle* 64 (1): 35-38, February 1988.

Prairie Farm Rehabilitation Administration. 1987. Conservation Reserve for Marginal Land Conversion. Regina, Sask.

# **LOGGING**

Blinn, C.R. "How Log Sorting Affects Productivity." Forest Industries 115 (8): 27-29, August 1988.

Brace, L.G. "A Test of Three Logging Systems in Alberta." Canadian Forest Industries 110 (8): 24-29, August 1990.

British Columbia Ministry of Forests and Lands. Engineering Branch and Silviculture Branch. 1987. Ground Skidding Guidelines: With Emphasis on Minimizing Site Disturbance. Victoria, B.C.

Brunberg, B.; Gardh, R.; Lindgren, P. 1984. Felling Manual. Forest Operations Institute of Sweden, Spanga, Sweden.

Brunberg, B.; Gardh, R.; Lindgren, P. 1984. Limbing, Bucking and Bunching. Forest Operations Institute of Sweden, Spanga, Sweden.

Brunberg, B.; Gardh, R.; Lindberg, P. 1984. Work Planning and Cutting Methods. Forest Operations Institute of Sweden, Spanga, Sweden.

Emmingham, W.H. 1993. "Thinning: An Important Timber Management Tool." Pacific Northwest Extension Service. Extension Publication PNW 184. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Forestry Canada; New Brunswick Dept. of Natural Resources and Energy. Harvesting in New Brunswick. Fredericton, N.B.

Forintek Canada Corp. 1975. Felling and Bucking Hardwoods: How to Improve Your Profit. Ottawa, Ont.

Froning, K. 1980. Logging Hardwoods to Reduce Damage to White Spruce Understory. Environment Canada, Canadian Forestry Service, Northern Forest Research Centre, Edmonton, Alta. Information Report NOR-X-229.

Garland, J.J. 1993. "Felling and Bucking Techniques for Woodland Owners." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1124. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Garland, J.J. 1993. "Hauling Logs from Woodland Properties." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Publication 1140. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Garland, J.J. 1993. "Increasing Values through Bucking Practices: Manufacturing Logs." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1184. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Garland, J.J. 1993. "Logging Woodland Properties." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 956. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Husqvarna Sweden. Husqvarna Forest Technique: Organized Thinning. Stockholm, Sweden.

Husqvarna Sweden. Organized Felling: Rules and Methods for Organizing the Work of Final Felling. Stockholm, Sweden.

Jeglum, J.K.; Kennington, D.J. 1993. Strip Clearcutting in Black Spruce: A Guide for the Practicing Forester. Forestry Canada, Ontario Region, Great Lakes Forestry Centre, Sault Ste. Marie, Ont.

Martin, R. et al. 1985. "Timber Harvesting Alternatives." Washington State University Cooperative Extension Service. Extension Bulletin 1316. (Forest Stewardship).

New Brunswick Dept. of Natural Resources and Energy, Forest Extension Service. 1988. Snowmobile Logging. Fredericton, N.B.

Ontario Forest Products Accident Prevention Association. 1990. Safe Skidding Techniques. North Bay, Ont.

Ontario Forest Products Accident Prevention Association. 1991. Your New Job in Logging: An Orientation to Safety on the Job for New Employees in the Cut-and-Skid Logging Industry in Ontario. North Bay, Ont.

Ontario Forest Products Accident Prevention Association. 1992. Proper Felling & Limbing Techniques. Revised ed. North Bay, Ont.

Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources. Improving Sawlog Production in a Young Hardwood Stand.

Petro, F.J. 1990. L'Abattage et le Tronconnage des Bois Feuillus: Comment Accroitre vos Benefices. Forintek Canada Corp.

Robertson, R.G.; Young, R.W. 1989. Shelterwood Harvesting Manual. Forestry Canada; Nova Scotia Dept. of Lands and Forests, Truro, N.S.

Workers' Compensation Board of British Columbia. 1990. Fallers' & Buckers' Handbook: Practical Methods for Falling and Bucking Timber Safely. 9th. ed. Richmond, B.C.

# MAPLE SYRUP-MAKING

Blouin, G. 1992. Manitoba Maple - An Untapped Resource: A Preliminary Report on the Feasibility of Developing a Viable Industry in the Canadian Prairie Provinces Based upon the Utilization of Products Derived from the Sap of Manitoba Maple (Acer Negundo L.). Forestry Canada, Saskatchewan District Office; Saskatchewan Natural Resources, Forests and Lands Branch, Prince Albert, Sask.

Coons, C.F. 1987. Sugar Bush Management for Maple Syrup Producers. Revised ed. Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources, Toronto, Ont.

New Brunswick Forest Extension Service. 1987. Backyard Maple Syrup Making. Technical Note 1987:03. Fredericton, N.B.

New Brunswick Natural Resources. Sugar Bush: A Series of Leaflets on Maple Syrup Production. Fredericton, N.B.:

"Tapping." 1983.

"Products Derived from Maple Syrup." 1984.

"Maple Sap Vacuum Collection System." 1986.

No. 2 of 8.

No. 3 of 8.

No. 4 of 8.

Nova Scotia Dept. of Lands and Forests; Forestry Canada. 1990. Effect of Tapping on the Diameter Growth of Sugar Maple Trees Less Than 25 cm in Diameter. Forest Research Report No. 21. Truro, N.S.

Ontario Dept. of Lands and Forests. 1967. Sap and Syrup of Five Maple Species. Research Report No. 69. Toronto, Ont.

Ontario Maple Syrup Producers Association. Ontario Maple Mainline. Strathroy, Ont.

Ontario Ministry of Agriculture and Food. 1989. Maple Syrup: Measuring Density. Fact Sheet. Agdex 310/70. Toronto, Ont.

### **MISCELLANEOUS**

Blumenstock, B. 1980. Timber Trespass. University of Maine at Orono, Cooperative Extension Service, Orono, Me. Forestry Note.

Dirr, M.A.; Heuser, C.W. 1987. The Reference Manual of Woody Plant Propagation: From Seed to Tissue Culture. Varsity Press, Athens, Ga.

Dove, M.R. "Foresters' Beliefs about Farmers: A Priority for Social Science Research in Social Forestry." Agroforestry Systems 17 (1): 13-41, 1992.

Hard, R. 1985. Build Your Own Low-Cost Log Home. Revised ed. Storey Communications, Pownal, Vt.

Keyes, D.R. 1989. A Generalized Guide to Small Aquaculture Enterprises. Midwest Research Institute, Kansas City, Mo.

Midwest Research Institute. 1990. Forest Resource Strategies for Rural Development. Kansas City, Mo.

Sandved, K.B.; Prance, G.T.; Prance, A.E. 1993. Bark: The Formation, Characteristics, and Uses of Bark Around the World. Timber Press, Portland, Ore.

Sullivan, S. 1989. Organizing a Food Industry Association. Midwest Research Institute, Kansas City, Mo.

Tucker, S.C. 1990. Pruning in Alberta. Alberta Agriculture. Agdex No. 270/24-1. Revised ed.

University of Maine at Orono Cooperative Extension Service. Forest Biomass. Forestry Note. Orono, Me.

# **PERIODICALS**

Agroforestry Systems. Quarterly.

American Forests. Bi-monthly.

Forest Times. Bi-monthly.

Harrowsmith. Bi-monthly.

International Tree Crops Journal. Quarterly.

Northern Journal of Applied Forestry. Quarterly.

Northwest Woodlands. Quarterly.

Silviculture, Journal of the New Forest. Bi-monthly.

Small Scale Forestry. Semi-Annual.

Southern Journal of Applied Forestry. Quarterly.

Timber Grower. Quarterly.

Western Journal of Applied Forestry. Quarterly.

#### RANGELANDS

Alberta Agriculture. 1984. Developing and Maintaining Brush Pastures. Agdex 643-1. Edmonton, Alta.

Allen, B.H. "Forest Rangeland Relationships." In Vegetation Science Applications for Rangeland Analysis and Management. 1988. Tueller, P.T., editor. Kluwer Academic Publishers, Dordrecht, Netherlands. Vol. 14: 339-362. (Handbook of Vegetation Science, H. Lieth, editor in chief).

Harris, G.A. 1991. "Grazing Lands of Washington State." In Rangelands, October 1991. (Forest Stewardship).

Oregon State University, Agricultural Experiment Station, Eastern Oregon Agricultural Research Center and Rangeland Resources Program. 1980. Research in Rangeland Management. Special Report 586.

Pacific Northwest Cooperative Extension Service. 1980. "Pacific Northwest Range: Its Nature and Use." Reprinted. PNW Bulletin 73. (Forest Stewardship).

Smoliak, S.; Willms, W.D. 1988. Range Pastures in Alberta. Alberta Agriculture. Agdex 134/14-8. Edmonton, Alta.

Thorpe, J.; Godwin, R.; Lauzon, R. 1990. Forage Production in Selected Aspen Locations in Saskatchewan: A Report on the 1989 Field Season. Saskatchewan Research Council, Saskatoon, Sask. Publication E-2520-3-E-90.

# SILVICULTURE SYSTEMS

Forestry Canada, Policy and Economics Directorate; Forestry Canada, Science and Sustainable Development. 1992. Silvicultural Terms in Canada. Ottawa, Ont.

New Brunswick Dept. of Natural Resources, Forest Extension Branch. 1982. Choices in Silviculture for Eastern Canadian Forests. Fredericton, N.B.

Quebec Dept. of Energy and Resources. Silviculture in the Aspen Grove. Report ERI-4401-2C. 3rd ed. Charlesbourg, Que.

Shepperd, W.D. 1986. Silviculture of Aspen Forests in the Rocky Mountains and the Southwest. USDA Forest Service, Fort Collins, Colo. RM-TT-7. Supplement to Slide Program.

USDA Forest Service. "Silvicultural Systems for the Major Forest Types of Washington." Adapted from Agricultural Handbook No. 445. (Forest Stewardship).

# SITE PREPARATION

Fitzgerald, S.A. 1993. "Site Preparation: An Introduction for the Woodland Owner." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1188. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Nova Scotia Dept. of Lands and Forests; Forestry Canada. 1991. Corridor Raking: An Alternative Method of Site Preparation. Forest Research Report No. 29. Truro, N.S.

Nova Scotia Dept. of Lands and Forests; Forestry Canada. 1991. An Evaluation of 4 Methods of Site Preparation. Forest Research Report No. 31. Truro, N.S.

Orlander, G.; Gemmel, P.; Hunt, J. 1990. Site Preparation: A Swedish Overview. B.C. Ministry of Forests; Forestry Canada, Pacific Forestry Centre, Victoria, B.C. Canada-B.C. Economic and Regional Development Agreement (FRDA) Report 105.

Wood, J.E.; Dominy, S.W.J. "Mechanical Site Preparation and Early Chemical Tending in White Spruce: 19-Year Results." Forestry Chronicle 64 (3): 177-181, June 1988.

# **TAXATION**

Baughman, M.J. 1990. "Income Tax Guide for Woodland Owners." University of Minnesota, Natural Resources, Minnesota Extension Service. Report NR-BU-3934-E (Forest Stewardship).

Beach, W. 1983. Taxation and Private Land Forests and Woodlots in Canada. Canadian Forestry Association, Ottawa, Ont.

Bettinger, P.; Haney, H.L., Jr.; Siegel, W.C. "The Impact of Federal and State Income Taxes on Timber Income in the West Following the 1986 Tax Reform." Western Journal of Applied Forestry 6 (1): 15-20, 1991.

Boulter, D. 1984. *Taxation and the Forestry Sector*. Environment Canada, Canadian Forestry Service, Economics Branch, Hull, Que. Information Report E-X-33.

Curtis, D.S. 1992. Provincial Taxation of Private Woodlots in Canada. Canadian Forestry Association, Ottawa, Ont.

Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources; Ministry of Municipal Affairs. 1992. Guide to the Ontario Conservation Land Tax Reduction Program 1991 and 1992. Toronto, Ont.

Puttock, G.D. "A Summary of Taxation Measures Affecting Forest Management on Private Lands in Ontario." Forestry Chronicle 58 (2): 100-103, April 1982.

Siegel, W.C. "Timber and Taxes." In National Woodlands, January 1991. (Forest Stewardship).

Sutherland, C.F., Jr. 1993. "Oregon's Forest Products Harvest Tax." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1151. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Washington Dept. of Revenue. "Summary of Forest Land and Timber Taxes in Washington State." (Forest Stewardship).

## **TECHNOLOGY**

New Brunswick Dept. of Natural Resources and Energy, Forest Extension Service. 1979. Farm Woodlot Mechanization Trends and Innovations. Paper No. NA79-004. Fredericton, N.B.

### TREES

Burns, R.M.; Honkala, B.H. 1990. Silvics of North America: Volume 1 - Conifers. USDA Forest Service, Washington, D.C. Agriculture Handbook No. 654.

Burns, R.M.; Honkala, B.H. 1990. Silvics of North America: Volume 2 - Hardwoods. USDA Forest Service, Washington, D.C. Agriculture Handbook No. 654.

Hosie, R.C. 1990. Native Trees of Canada. 8th. ed. Fitzhenry & Whiteside Ltd., Markham, Ont.

Miller, W.A. "Fifty Years of Poplar." Quarterly Journal of Forestry 70 (4): 201-206, October 1976.

Mosher, M.M.; Kunnum, K. 1990. "Trees of Washington." Washington State University Cooperative Extension Service. Extension Bulletin 0440. Reprinted ed. (*Forest Stewardship*).

Navratil, S.; Chapman, P.B., editors. 1991. Aspen Management for the 21st Century: Proceedings of a Symposium held November 20-21, 1990 in Edmonton, Alberta. Forestry Canada, Northwest Region; Poplar Council of Canada, Edmonton, Alta.

Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources. 1991. Trees: A Handy Guide for People Who Want to Put Down Roots. Toronto, Ont.

Peterson, E.B.; Peterson, N.M. 1992. Ecology, Management and Use of Aspen and Balsam Poplar in the Prairie Provinces. Forestry Canada, Northwest Region, Northern Forestry Centre. Special Report 1.

# **Christmas Trees**

Appleton, B.L.; Nichols, T.J. 1989. *Producing Living Christmas Trees*. Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University, Cooperative Extension, Blacksburg, Va. Publication 420-079.

British Columbia Ministry of Forests and Lands. 1988. Christmas Tree Culture. Victoria, B.C.

Canadian Christmas Tree Growers Association. Canadian Christmas Tree Newsletter.

Christie, C. 1980. Managing Wild Balsam Fir for Christmas Trees: A Beginner's Manual. Revised ed. Nova Scotia Dept. of Lands and Forests, Truro, N.S.

Christmas Tree Growers Association of Ontario. Ontario Christmas Tree News. Lynden, Ont.

Environment Canada, Canadian Forestry Service, Maritimes Forest Research Centre. 1981. So You Want to Grow Your Own Balsam Fir Planting Stock. Technical Note No. 24. Fredericton, N.B.

Environment Canada, Canadian Forestry Service, Maritimes Forest Research Centre. 1982. Thinning Wild Stands of Balsam Fir for Christmas Tree Production. Technical Note No. 52. Fredericton, N.B.

Estabrooks, G.F. 1987. Growing Balsam Fir Christmas Trees in Field and Forest. Canadian Forestry Service, Maritimes, Fredericton, N.B. Information Report M-X-164.

Foster, B.B.; Cote, J.B. "Rates of Return from Christmas Tree Plantations: Two Case Studies in New Hampshire." *Journal of Forestry* 68 (2): 98-99, February 1970.

Government of Canada, Canadian Forestry Service, Maritimes Forest Research Centre. 1985. A Case for Fully Stocked Christmas Tree Stands. Technical Note No. 138. Fredericton, N.B.

Hill, L. 1989. Christmas Trees: Growing and Selling Trees, Wreaths and Greens. Storey Communications, Pownal, Vt.

Howard, T.E.; Walkowiak, J.T. "Management Impacts on Christmas Tree Returns." *Northern Journal of Applied Forestry* 5 (1): 51-55, March 1988.

Johnson, J.E. 1989. Coloring Christmas Trees Before Harvest. Virginia Polytechnic Institute and Virginia State Cooperative Extension Service, Blacksburg, Va. Publication 420-638. Reprinted ed.

Johnson, J.E. 1990. Selection and Care of Christmas Trees. Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University Cooperative Extension, Blacksburg, Va. Publication 420-641.

Johnson, J.E., editor. 1991. *Christmas Tree Production Manual*. Virginia Polytechnic Institute and Virginia State University Cooperative Extension Service, Blacksburg, Va. Publication 420-075.

Johnson, J.E. et al. 1992. Tree Crops for Marginal Farmland: Christmas Trees with a Financial Analysis. Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University Cooperative Extension, Blacksburg, Va. Publication 446-605.

Johnson, J.E.; Leuschner, W.A.; Burchinal, F.E. 1992. Economics of Producing an Acre of White Pine Christmas Trees. Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University Cooperative Extension, Blacksburg, Va. Publication 420-081. Reprinted ed.

Lazarus, W.T. 1987. Christmas Tree Economics: Net Present Value Analysis Using Lotus 1-2-3. New York State College of Agriculture and Life Sciences; Cornell University Agricultural Experiment Station, Ithaca, N.Y. A.E. Ext. 87-18.

McCormack, M.L.; Young, J.A. 1967. Program for Successfully Establishing Plantations of Balsam Fir Christmas Trees. University of Vermont, Agricultural Experiment Station, Burlington, Vt. Bulletin 650.

Michigan State University Agricultural Experiment Station. 1988. Costs and Returns in Michigan Christmas Tree Production, 1986. Research Report 492. East Lansing, Mich.

Needham, D. et al. 1991. Growing Christmas Trees in Alberta: A Market Analysis and Feasibility Study. University of Alberta, Dept. of Rural Economy, Edmonton, Alta. Project Report No. 91-08.

New Brunswick Dept. of Natural Resources and Energy, Forest Extension Service. 1984. New Brunswick Balsam Fir Plantations per Acres Cost Considerations. Revised ed. Fredericton, N.B.

New Brunswick Dept. of Natural Resources and Energy, Forest Extension Service. 1987. Soils and Foliage Analysis: Tools for the Christmas Tree Grower. Operational Note 1987:06.

New Brunswick Dept. of Natural Resources and Energy, Forest Extension Service. 1991. Collection of Balsam Fir Tips. Fredericton, N.B.

Nichols, T.J.; Appleton, B.L. 1987. *Marketing on a Choose-and-Cut Christmas Tree Farm*. Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University Cooperative Extension Service, Blacksburg, Va. Publication 420-639.

Nichols, T.J.; Appleton, B.L. 1988. Wholesale Marketing of Christmas Trees. Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University Cooperative Extension Service, Blacksburg, Va. Publication 420-640. Reprinted ed.

Nova Scotia Dept. of Lands and Forests; Forestry Canada. 1992. Balsam Fir Christmas Tree Needle Retention Versus Timing of Bud Flush. Forest Research Report No. 41. Truro, N.S.

Pinnock, D.F. Establishment and Care of Balsam Fir for Christmas Trees. N.B. Dept. of Agriculture, Plant Industry Branch, Fredericton, N.B.

Powell, G.R. "Shoot and Bud Development in Balsam Fir: Implications for Pruning of Christmas Trees." Forestry Chronicle 58 (4): 168-172, August 1982.

Stiell, W.M.; Stanton, C.R. 1974. Introduction to Christmas Tree Growing in Canada. Canadian Forestry Service, Ottawa, Ont. Publication No. 1330.

University of New Brunswick, Faculty of Forestry. 1986. Balsam Fir Update: A Review of the Latest Research Findings Pertinent to Christmas Tree Culture. Proceedings of a Seminar Sponsored by UNB's Faculty of Forestry, April 5, 1986. Fredericton, N.B.

University of New Brunswick, Faculty of Forestry. 1990. Balsam Fir Update: A Review of the Latest Research Findings Pertinent to Christmas Tree Culture. Proceedings of a Seminar sponsored by UNB's Faculty of Forestry, March 24, 1990. Fredericton, N.B.

Walkowiak, J.T.; Howard, T.E. 1986. Christmas Tree Production Costs and Returns Model. University of New Hampshire, Agricultural Experiment Station, Durham, N.B. Research Report No. 110.

Zedaker, S.M.; Leuschner, W.A.; Vodak, M.C. 1986. Estimated Costs and Returns for Growing One Acre of White Pine Christmas Trees. Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University Cooperative Extension Service, Blacksburg, Va. Publication 420-081.

## **Diseases and Pests**

Alberta Agriculture. Backyard Pest Management. Agdex 605-2. Edmonton, Alta.

Alberta Agriculture. 1986. Browning of Evergreens. Agdex 275/690. Reprinted ed. Edmonton, Alta.

Alberta Agriculture. 1990. Fireblight. Agdex 636-1. Edmonton, Alta.

Alberta Agriculture. 1991. Dieback and Yellowing of Leaves of Birch. Agdex 275/637-3. Edmonton, Alta.

DeCalesta, D.S.; Asman, K. 1993. "Controlling Pocket Gopher Damage to Conifer Seedlings." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1255. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

DeCalesta, D.S.; Duddles, R.E.; Bondi, M.C. 1993. "Controlling Mountain Beaver Damage in Forest Plantations." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1144. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

DeYoe, D.R. 1993. "Understanding and Controlling Deer Damage in Young Plantations." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1201. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Duddles, R.D.; DeCalesta, D.S. 1992. "Controlling Vole Damage to Conifer Seedlings." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1256. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Eissenstat, D.M.; Mitchell, J.E.; Pope, W.W. "Trampling Damage by Cattle on Northern Idaho Forest Plantations." *Journal of Range Management* 35 (6): 715-716, November 1982.

Hiratsuka, Y. 1987. Forest Tree Diseases of the Prairie Provinces. Canadian Forestry Service, Northern Forestry Centre, Edmonton, Alta. Information Report NOR-X-286.

Hiratsuka, Y. et al. 1990. Classification and Measurement of Aspen Decay and Stain in Alberta. Forestry Canada, Northwest Region, Northern Forestry Centre, Edmonton, Alta. Information Report NOR-X-314.

Ives, W.G.H.; Wong, H.R. 1988. Tree and Shrub Insects of the Prairie Provinces. Canadian Forestry Service, Northern Forestry Centre, Edmonton, Alta. Information Report NOR-X-292.

Radvanyi, A. 1987. Snowshoe Hares and Forest Plantations: A Literature Review and Problem Analysis. Canadian Forestry Service, Northern Forestry Centre, Edmonton, Alta. Information Report NOR-X-290.

USDA Forest Service, North Central Forest Experiment Station. 1989. Pocket Guide to Christmas Tree Diseases. St. Paul. Minn.

# Growth

Berry, A.B. "Response of Suppressed Conifer Seedlings to Release from an Aspen-Pine Overstory." *Forestry Chronicle* 58 (2): 91-92, April 1982.

Boysen, B.; Strobl, S., editors. 1991. Grower's Guide to Hybrid Poplar. Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources, Toronto, Ont.

Cleary, B.D.; DeYoe, D.R. 1993. "Seedling Care and Handling." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1095. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Druck, N.; Strobl, S. "Type and Timing of Thinning Hybrid Poplar Coppice Affects Growth." *Northern Journal of Applied Forestry* 8 (4): 166-168, December 1991.

Duddles, R.D.; Cloughesy, M. 1992. "Introduction to Conifer Release." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1388. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Farmer, R.E. et al. "Competition Effects in Juvenile Jack Pine and Aspen as Influenced by Density and Species Ratios." *Journal of Applied Ecology* 25: 1023-1032, 1988.

Hansen, E.A. "Planting Date Affects Survival and Height Growth of Hybrid Poplar." Forestry Chronicle 62 (3): 164-169, June 1986.

Hansen, E.A.; Netzer, D.A.; Woods, R.F. "Tillage Superior to No-Till for Establishing Hybrid Poplar Plantations." *Tree Planters' Notes* 37 (1): 6-10, Winter 1986.

Hines, F.D.; Long, J.N. "First- and Second-Year Survival of Containerized Engelmann Spruce in Relation to Initial Seedling Size." *Canadian Journal of Forest Research* 16 (3): 668-670, June 1986.

Kabzems, A. 1971. Growth and Yield of Well-Stocked White Spruce in the Mixedwood Section in Saskatchewan. Saskatchewan Dept. of Natural Resources, Forestry Branch, Regina, Sask. Technical Bulletin No. 5.

Kabzems, A.; Kirby, C.L. 1956. Growth and Yield of Jack Pine in Saskatchewan. Saskatchewan Dept. of Natural Resources, Forestry Branch, Regina, Sask. Technical Bulletin No. 2.

Kirby, C.L.; Bailey, W.S.; Gilmour, J.G. 1957. Growth and Yield of Aspen in Saskatchewan. Saskatchewan Dept. of Natural Resources, Forestry Branch, Regina, Sask. Technical Bulletin No. 3.

Kock, H. 1992. Growing Native Plants from Seed Manual. 2nd. ed. University of Guelph, The Arboretum, Guelph, Ont.

Landgren, C.G.; DeYoe, D.R. 1993. "Selecting and Buying Quality Seedlings." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1196. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Levy, D.M. 1985. Growing Your Own Trees. Reprinted ed. Nova Scotia Dept. of Lands and Forests, Truro, N.S.

MacLean, D.A.; Morgan, M.G. "Long-Term Growth and Yield Response of Young Fir to Manual and Chemical Release from Shrub Competition." Forestry Chronicle 59 (4): 177-183, August 1983.

Mullin, R.E. "Comparison of Seedling and Transplant Performance Following 15 Years Growth." Forestry Chronicle 56 (5): 231-232, October 1980.

Newton, M. et al. "Young Spruce-Fir Forests Released by Herbicides I. Response of Hardwoods and Shrubs." *Northern Journal of Applied Forestry* 9 (4): 126-130, December 1992.

Newton, M. et al. "Young Spruce-Fir Forests Released by Herbicides II. Conifer Response to Residual Hardwoods and Overstocking." *Northern Journal of Applied Forestry* 9 (4): 130-135, December 1992.

Nova Scotia Dept. of Lands and Forests; Forestry Canada. 1990. The Effect of Various Field-Storage Conditions on the Survival and Growth of Outplanted Bare-Root Stock. Forest Research Report No. 19. Truro, N.S.

Schroeder, W.R.; Walker, D.S. "Relationship of Root Collar Diameter to Survival and Growth of Caragana and Green Ash in Field Shelterbelts." *Tree Planters' Notes* 42 (1): 36-39, Winter 1991.

Smith, J.H.G.; Blom, G. "Decade of Intensive Cultivation of Poplars in British Columbia Shows Need for Long-Term Research to Reduce Risks." *Forestry Chronicle* 42 (4): 359-376, December 1966.

USDA Forest Service. 1991. "People and Trees Growing Together: America the Beautiful National Tree Program." Report FS-496. (Forest Stewardship).

Yang, R.C. "Growth of White Spruce Following Release from Aspen Competition: 35 Year Results." Forestry Chronicle 67 (6): 706-711, December 1991.

Yang, R.C. 1989. Growth Response of White Spruce to Release from Trembling Aspen. Forestry Canada, Northern Forestry Centre, Edmonton, Alta. Information Report NOR-X-302.

# **Transplanting**

Canadian Forestry Service, Great Lakes Forest Research Centre. 1978. Transplanting Trees and Shrubs. Sault Ste. Marie, Ont.

Manitoba Natural Resources, Forestry Branch. 1990. Setting Down New Roots. Reprinted ed. Winnipeg, Man.

# **Tree Crops**

MacDaniels, L.H.; Leiberman, A.S. "Tree Crops: A Neglected Source of Food and Forage from Marginal Lands." *Bioscience* 29 (3): 173-175, March 1979.

Robinson, P.J. "Trees as Fodder Crops." In *Attributes of Trees as Crop Plants*. 1985. Cannell, M.G.R.; Jackson, J.E., editors. ITE, Abbots Ripon: 281-300.

# **Tree Planting**

Alberta Agriculture, Alberta Tree Nursery and Horticulture Centre. 1992. Policy for Distribution of Trees and Shrubs. Edmonton, Alta.

Canadian Forestry Service, Great Lakes Forest Research Centre. 1979. Planting and Tending Recommendations for Red Oak. Sault Ste. Marie, Ont.

Canadian Forestry Service, Great Lakes Forest Research Centre. 1979. Planting and Tending Recommendations for Silver Maple. Sault Ste. Marie, Ont.

Canadian Forestry Service, Great Lakes Forest Research Centre, 1979. Planting and Tending Recommendations for White Ash. Sault Ste. Marie, Ont.

Canadian Forestry Service, Great Lakes Forest Research Centre. 1983. Planting and Tending Recommendations for Sugar Maple. Sault Ste. Marie, Ont.

Manitoba Dept. of Natural Resources. 1980. Dig Your Own. Reprinted ed. Winnipeg, Man.

Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources. 1991. Trees: A Handy Guide for People Who Want to Put Down Roots. Toronto, Ont.

Prairie Farm Rehabilitation Administration, Shelterbelt Centre. Planting Trees for Wildlife. Indian Head, Sask.

Robertson, R.G.; Young, R.W. 1988. *Tree Planting Manual*. Nova Scotia Dept. of Lands and Forests, Truro, N.S.; Canadian Forestry Service.

Von Althen, F.W. 1990. Hardwood Planting on Abandoned Farmland in Southern Ontario. Forestry Canada, Ontario Region, Sault Ste. Marie, Ont.

Washington Dept. of Natural Resources. 1991. "Planting Forest Seedlings." (Forest Stewardship).

# **URBAN FORESTRY**

Buchanan, M. 1992. Inventory and Natural History of the Albany Neighbourhood Forest. Grassroots Albany, Toronto, Ont.

Dwyer, J.F.; Schroeder, H.W.; Gobster, P.H. "Significance of Urban Trees and Forests: Toward a Deeper Understanding of Values." *Journal of Arboriculture* 17 (1): 276-284, October 1991.

# WATER RESOURCES

Alberta Agriculture. 1991. Watercourse Improvement and Gully Restoration. Agdex 573-5. Edmonton, Alta.

Bond, W.K. et al. 1988. Wetlands are not Wastelands. Canadian Wildlife Service; Wildlife Habitat Canada, Ottawa, Ont.

Canadian Forestry Service. Forests and Water. Fact Sheet.

USDA Forest Service. 1991. "Riparian Forest Buffers: Function and Design for Protection and Enhancement of Water Resources." Report NA-PR-07-91. (Forest Stewardship).

Watson, K.; Lindley, D.; Schirato, M. 1989. "Creating a Pond." In Northwest Woodlands, Spring 1989. (Forest Stewardship).

Wiskel, B. 1990. Pond Raising Rainbow Trout. The Athabaskan, Athabasca, Alta.

### WEED CONTROL

Alberta Agriculture. 1990. Guide to Crop Protection in Alberta: Part 2; Non-Chemical Control of Weeds, Insects, Diseases for Maximum Economic Yield. Agdex 606-2. Reprinted ed. Edmonton, Alta.

Alberta Agriculture. 1993. Chemical Weed Control for Alberta Shelterbelts. Agdex 277/645-1. Revised ed. Edmonton, Alta.

Jobidon, R. "Allelopathic Potential of Coniferous Species to Old-Field Weeds in Eastern Quebec." Forest Science 32 (1): 112-118, January 1986.

Miller, R.V. et al. 1991. "Knapweed: Trees for Weed Control." Washington State University Cooperative Extension. (Forest Stewardship).

Nova Scotia Dept. of Lands and Forests; Forestry Canada. 1993. Plantation Weeding with Glyphosate: Effects on Crop Growth. Forest Research Report No. 45. Truro, N.S.

Ontario Weed Committee. 1993. Guide to Weed Control 1993. Ontario Ministry of Agriculture and Food, Toronto, Ont. Publication #75.

Prairie Farm Rehabilitation Administration, Shelterbelt Centre. Weed Control in Shelterbelts. Indian Head, Sask.

Sutton, R.F. "Glyphosate Herbicide: An Assessment of Forestry Potential." Forestry Chronicle 54 (1): 24-28, February 1978.

Sutton, R.F. "Plantation Establishment in the Boreal Forest: Glyphosate, Hexazinone and Manual Weed Control." Forestry Chronicle 60 (5): 283-287, October 1984.

USDA Forest Service, North Central Forest Experiment Station. 1985. Weed Control Using Herbicides in Short-Rotation Intensively Culture Poplar Plantations. Research Paper NC-260. St. Paul, Minn.

# **WILD FOOD**

Alberta Agriculture. Fruit from your Shelterbelt...Jams & Jellies. Homedex 1152-1. Edmonton, Alta.

Alberta Agriculture. 1993. Currants and Gooseberries in Alberta. Agdex 236/20-1. Edmonton, Alta.

Alberta Agriculture. 1993. Raspberries in Alberta. Agdex 237/20-1. Edmonton, Alta.

Alberta Agriculture. 1993. Saskatoons in Alberta. Agdex 238/20-1. Edmonton, Alta.

Alberta Agriculture, Agri-Food and Processing Development Branch. 1989. Alberta Saskatoons. Reprinted ed. Edmonton, Alta.

Alberta Agriculture, Food and Rural Development, Production Economics Branch, Economics Services Division. 1993. *The Economics of Honey Production*. Agdex 821-62. Edmonton, Alta.

Northern Harvest Enterprises Ltd. 1989. Feasibility Assessment of the Saskatchewan Wild Food Industry. Saskatchewan Agriculture Development Fund, Regina, Sask.

Prairie Farm Rehabilitation Administration, Shelterbelt Centre. Fruit-Bearing Shrubs for Multi-Use Shelterbelts and Orchards. Indian Head, Sask.

Szczawinski, A.F.; Turner, N.J. 1980. Wild Green Vegetables of Canada. National Museum of Natural Sciences; National Museums of Canada, Ottawa, Ont. Edible Wild Plants of Canada Series No. 4.

Turner, N.J.: Szczawinski, A.F. 1988. *Edible Wild Fruits and Nuts of Canada*. National Museum of Natural Sciences, Ottawa, Ont.; Fitzhenry & Whiteside, Markham, Ont. Edible Wild Plants of Canada Series No. 3.

# WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT

Alberta Dept. of Forestry, Lands and Wildlife, Alberta Fish and Wildlife Division. 1987. Landowner Habitat Project: A Pilot Venture Between Wildlife Habitat Canada and Alberta Dept. of Forestry, Lands and Wildlife, Fish and Wildlife Division. Edmonton, Alta.

D.A. Westworth & Associates; Adamowicz, W.L. 1990. An Evaluation of the Landowner Habitat Project. Wildlife Habitat Canada, Alberta Fish and Wildlife Division, Edmonton, Alta.

DeCalesta, D.S. 1993. "Enhancing Wildlife on Private Woodlands." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1122. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Edwards, W.R. "Ecology and Wildlife Management." Adapted from *Illinois 4-H Wildlife Conservation Manual*. Washington State University Cooperative Extension. (*Forest Stewardship*).

Environment Canada, Canadian Wildlife Service; Wildlife Habitat Canada. 1991. Guidelines for the Integration of Wildlife Habitat Evaluations with Ecological Land Survey. Ottawa, Ont.

Girt, J. 1990. Common Ground: Recommendations for Policy Reform to Integrate Wildlife Habitat, Environmental and Agricultural Objectives on the Farm. Wildlife Habitat Canada; Environment Canada; Agriculture Canada, Ottawa, Ont.

Haney, T.J. et al. 1991. Retention and Development of Wildlife on Private Lands: An Annotated Bibliography. University of Alberta, Dept. of Rural Economy, Edmonton, Alta. Staff Paper No. 91-04.

Haney, T.J.; Phillips, W.E.; Adamowicz, W.L. 1991. *Private Landowner Wildlife Habitat in Alberta: An Economic Analysis of Retention and Development*. University of Alberta, Dept. of Rural Economy, Edmonton, Alta. Project Report No. 91-04.

Haney, T.J.; Phillips, W.E.; Adamowicz, W.L. 1991. Wildlife Habitat Preservation Programs on Private Lands: A Survey of Selected Provinces, States and Territories of Canada and the United States. University of Alberta, Dept. of Rural Economy, Edmonton, Alta. Project Report 91-02.

Jacquemot, A.; Reid, R.; Filion, F.L. 1986. The Importance of Wildlife to Canadians: The Recreational Economic Significance of Wildlife. Environment Canada, Canadian Wildlife Service, Ottawa, Ont.

Leopold, A. 1949. A Sand County Almanac: And Sketches Here and There. Oxford University Press, New York, N.Y.

Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources; Landscape Ontario, Horticultural Trades Association. 1986. Landscaping for Wildlife. Toronto, Ont.

Poston, H.J.; Schmidt, R.K. 1981. Wildlife Habitat: A Handbook for Canada's Prairies & Parklands. Environment Canada, Canadian Wildlife Service, Western and Northern Region, Edmonton, Alta.

Ryder, J.P.; Boag, D.A. "A Canadian Paradox--Private Land, Public Wildlife: Can it be Resolved?" Canadian Field Naturalist 95 (1): 35-38, January-March 1981.

Washington State University Cooperative Extension. (Forest Stewardship).

Woodland Fish and Wildlife Project Publications:

"Is There a Place for Fish and Wildlife in Your Woodland?" 1988.

"Managing Deer on Small Woodlands." 1990.

"Managing Ponderosa Pine Woodlands for Fish and Wildlife." 1991.

"Managing Small Woodlands for Cavity Nesting Birds." 1991.

"Managing Small Woodlands for Ruffed Grouse." 1989.

"Riparian Areas: Fish and Wildlife Havens." 1989.

"Trout in Small Woodland Areas." 1990.

"Wood Ducks on Small Woodlands." 1990.

Wildlife Habitat Canada. 1991. The Status of Wildlife Habitat in Canada: Realities and Visions. Ottawa, Ont.

# WINDBREAKS, SHELTERBELTS, ETC.

Alberta Agriculture. 1985. Emergency Measures for Control of Wind Erosion. Agdex 572-1. Reprinted ed. Edmonton, Alta.

Alberta Agriculture. 1992. Shelterbelts in Alberta. Agdex 277/20-2. Edmonton, Alta.

Alberta Agriculture, Alberta Tree Nursery and Horticulture Centre. 1990. Planting Farm, Field & Roadside Shelterbelts in Alberta. Agdex 276/22. Edmonton, Alta.

Canada Dept. of Agriculture. 1975. Shelterbelts for the Peace River Region. Publication 1384. Revised ed. Ottawa, Ont.

Casement, B. et al. Shelterbelt Varieties for Alberta. Alberta Agriculture, Edmonton, Alta.; Agriculture Canada, Ottawa, Ont. Agdex 277/33-1.

Hagen, L.J.; Skidmore, E.L.; Dickerson, J.D. "Designing Narrow Strip Barrier Systems to Control Wind Erosion." *Journal of Soil and Water Conservation* 27 (6): 269-272, November-December 1972.

Janiec, M.; King, G. 1990. *Planting and Maintaining Field Windbreaks*. Ontario Ministry of Agriculture and Food, Toronto, Ont. Factsheet. Agdex 572.

Prairie Farm Rehabilitation Administration, Shelterbelt Centre. Planning Farm Shelterbelts. Indian Head, Sask.

Prairie Farm Rehabilitation Administration, Shelterbelt Centre. Shelterbelt News. Indian Head, Sask.

Prairie Farm Rehabilitation Administration, Shelterbelt Centre. Shelterbelts for Dugouts. Indian Head, Sask.

Prairie Farm Rehabilitation Administration, Shelterbelt Centre. 1989. Shelterbelt Species. Indian Head, Sask.

Prairie Farm Rehabilitation Administration, Shelterbelt Centre. 1991. Field Shelterbelts for the Prairies. Indian Head, Sask.

Rensema, T.R.; Tuskan, G.A. "Wood Utilization from Managed Field Windbreaks: A Modelling Study." *Journal of Soil and Water Conservation* 43 (6): 490-493, November-December 1988.

Timmermans, J.; Casement, B. 1992. Field Shelterbelts for Soil Conservation. Alberta Agriculture, Edmonton, Alta.; Agriculture Canada, Ottawa, Ont. Agdex 277/20-3. Reprinted ed.

# WOODLAND ROADS

Adams, P.W. 1993. "Maintaining Woodland Roads." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1139. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Garland, J.J. 1993. "Designated Skid Trails Minimize Soil Compaction. Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1110. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Garland, J.J. 1993. "Designing Woodland Roads." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1137. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Garland, J.J. 1993. "Planning Woodland Roads." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1118. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Garland, J.J. 1993. "Road Construction on Woodland Properties." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1135. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

# WOODLOT MANAGEMENT

Beattie, M.; Thompson, C.; Levine, L. 1983. Working with Your Woodland. University Press of New England, Hanover, N.H.

Bondi, M.; Landgren, C. 1993. "Management Planning for Woodland Owners: Why and How." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1125. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

British Columbia Ministry of Forests. 1991. Woodlot Licence Program in British Columbia. Victoria, B.C.

Canada-British Columbia Partnership Agreement on Forest Resource Development. 1992. Managing Your Woodland: A Non-Forester's Guide to Small-Scale Forestry in British Columbia. Reprinted ed. Canadian Forestry Service, Pacific Forestry Centre, Victoria, B.C.

Canada-New Brunswick Cooperation Agreement on Forest Development. Around Your Woodlot.

Canada-New Brunswick Cooperation Agreement on Forest Development. Woodlot Owners Survey: York-Sunbury-Charlotte Forest Products Marketing Board. Fredericton, N.B.

Canadian Forestry Service; Nova Scotia Dept. of Lands and Forests. Woodlot Management Home Study Course. Truro, N.S.:

"Introduction to Silviculture." 1987.	Module 1.
"Harvesting Systems." 1987.	Module 2.
"Stand Spacing." 1987.	Module 3.
"Wildlife and Forestry." 1992.	Module 4.
"Stand Establishment." 1992.	Module 5.
"Chainsaw Use and Safety." 1992.	Module 6.
"Woodlot Ecology." 1992.	Module 7.

Canadian Pulp and Paper Association. 1990. Membership Directory: Woodlands Section, Canadian Pulp and Paper Association. Montreal, Que.

Clements, S.E.; Jamnick, M.S. "Forest Management on Private Woodlots in New Brunswick." *Journal of Environmental Management* 29 (4): 391-398, December 1989.

Curtis, D.S. 1987. Woodlot Owner Organizations in Eastern Canada: Historic Development, Legislation, Structure, Financing and Services. Canadian Forestry Service, Maritimes, Fredericton, N.B. Information Report M-X-162.

DeMarsh, P. "Small-Scale Forestry in New Brunswick." Forest Planning Canada 6 (5): 30-31, September-October 1990.

DeYoe, D.R.; Cleary, B.D. 1983. Reforestation Planning Guide: Helping Insure Reforestation Success for Woodland Owners. Oregon State University Extension Service, Corvallis, Ore. EM 8241.

Elwood, N.E. 1993. "Record Keeping: A How-To-Do-It Guide for Small Woodland Owners." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1187. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Falardeau, H. 1988. Successful Forestry: A Guide to Private Forest Management. Government of Canada, Canadian Forestry Service, Quebec Region, Sainte-Foy, Que.

Farm Woodlot Association of Saskatchewan. Forest Landowners and Managers. Prince Albert, Sask.

Farm Woodlot Association of Saskatchewan. In Your Woodlot. Meadow Lake, Sask.

Farm Woodlot Association of Saskatchewan. Woodlot Facts. Meadow Lake, Sask.

Fazio, J. 1987. The Woodland Steward. 2nd. ed. The Woodland Press, Moscow, Id.

Federation of B.C. Woodlot Associations. The Independent Forest Farmer. Ganges, B.C.

FERIC. 1990. Drainage Ditches in Woodlot Management. Field Note No. Silviculture-27. Vancouver, B.C.

Fletcher, R. 1993. Glossary of Woodland Words. Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1155. Reprinted ed. (The Woodland Workbook).

Folster, D. "Private Woodlots: They're the Mystery Area of Canadian Forestry, and in Some Ways its Biggest Dilemma." *Nature Canada* 13 (1): 18-20, January-March 1984.

Forestry Canada, Quebec Region. 1989. Silvilog '88 Conferences. Sainte-Foy, Que.

Greene, J.L.; Blatner, K.A. "Identifying Woodland Owner Characteristics Associated with Timber Management." *Forest Science* 32 (1): 135-146, March 1986.

Landgren, C.G.; Bondi, M.C. 1993. "Management Planning for Woodland Owners: An Example." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1126. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

Madigan, G.; Jones, A.R.C. "The Private Forest Owners of Eastern Canada: A Survey." Silva Fennica 15 (1): 65-72, 1981.

Mukatis, W.A.; Sutherland, C.F. 1993. "Contracts for Woodland Owners and Christmas Tree Growers." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1192. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

New Brunswick Dept. of Natural Resources. 1986. Recommendations Concerning Regional Forest Management and Utilization on Private Woodlots in New Brunswick. Fredericton, N.B.

New Brunswick Dept. of Natural Resources, Forest Extension Service. 1988. Woodlot Management and Wildlife. Fredericton, N.B.

Oregon State University Extension Service. 1993. The Woodland Workbook. Corvallis, Ore.

Salkie, F.J.; Luckert, M.K.; Phillips, W.E. 1993. *Private Woodlot Survey Results for Northwestern Saskatchewan*. University of Alberta, Dept. of Rural Economy, Edmonton, Alta. Project Report 93-06.

Sennblad, G. "Small Scale Operations in Private Forestry." Small Scale Forestry 1/89:3-13.

Smaller, P.G.; Meister, A.D. 1983. *Practices, Problems and Economics of Farm Woodlots*. Massey University, Dept. of Agricultural Economics and Farm Management, Palmerston North, New Zealand. Discussion Paper in Natural Resource Economics No. 6.

Washington State Dept. of Natural Resources. 1991. "Forest Land Stewardship: Assisting the Private Woodland Owner." (*Forest Stewardship*).

Washington State University Cooperative Extension. Forest Stewardship Notes.

Washington State University Cooperative Extension. 1992. Forest Stewardship: A Handbook for Washington Forest Landowners. Revised ed. Pullman, Wa.

Woodard, S. "Estimating Site Productivity on Your Woodland." Oregon State University Extension Service. Extension Circular 1128. Reprinted ed. (*The Woodland Workbook*).

# **VIDEO CASSETTES (VHS)**

Alberta Tourism, Parks & Recreation. 1992. This Living World Series:

The Forest. (47 min., 56 sec.)

Wildlife Habitat. (47 min., 57 sec.)

Canada-Alberta Partnership Agreement in Forestry. Farm Woodlots on the Prairies. (17 min., 30 sec.)

Canadian Board Master. Canadian Board Master. (7 min., 21 sec.)

Canadian Sawmill Industries. Woodcraft. (9 min., 35 sec.)

FERIC. Woodlot: Harvesting & Extraction. (1 hr., 51 min.)

FERIC. Woodlot Machines: Harvesting & Extraction. (53 min., 19 sec.)

FERIC. Woodlot: Miscellaneous. (1 hr., 59 sec.)

FERIC. Woodlot: Processors & Chippers. (1 hr., 16 min.)

FERIC. Woodlot: Silvicultural Practices. (34 min., 34 sec.)

FERIC. 1993. Small-Scale Firewood Splitters and Processors. (1 hr., 35 min.)

FERIC. Harvesting and Processing of Wood Series:

Miscellaneous. 1985. (2 hr., 3 min.)

Miscellaneous (Small-Scale). 1979. (1 hr., 41 min.)

Processing and Conversion (Small-Scale). (3 tapes)

Skidding and Forwarding (Small-Scale). 1979. (1 hr., 51 min.)

Forest Products Accident Prevention Association. 1988. Timber Harvesting: Notching & Backcutting. (10 min., 48 sec.)

Forest Products Accident Prevention Association. 1989. Hazard Awareness: Mechanized Logging. (18 min., 32 sec.)

Forest Products Accident Prevention Association. 1989. Saw Chain Sharpening. (13 min., 11 sec.)

Forest Products Accident Prevention Association. 1990. Timber Harvesting: Felling Problem Trees. (18 min., 37 sec.)

Forest Products Accident Prevention Association. 1993. Safe Chainsaw Handling. (15 min., 41 sec.)

Forest Products Accident Prevention Association; Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources. 1986. Improved Hardwood Utilization Series:

Introduction. (19 min.) No. 1.

Felling. (19 min., 15 sec.) No. 2.

Skidding. (12 min.) No. 3.

Bucking. (26 min., 6 sec.) No. 4.

Processing. (23 min., 41 sec.) No. 5.

Maine Public Broadcasting Network; University of Maine at Orono Cooperative Extension. 1982. Great American Woodlots Series:

Alaska Tree Farmer Interview. (28 min., 54 sec.)

Minnesota Outstanding Tree Farmer. (28 min., 45 sec.)

Outstanding Southern Tree Farmer. (28 min., 56 sec.)

Southern Outstanding Tree Farmer. (28 min., 56 sec.)

Maine Public Broadcasting Network; University of Maine at Orono Cooperative Extension. 1982. Yankee Woodlot Series:

```
No. 1.
Introduction. (28 min., 55 sec.)
Where Is It? (28 min., 50 sec.)
                                       No. 2.
What's On It? (28 min., 40 sec.)
                                       No. 3.
What's Under it? (28 min., 49 sec.)
                                       No. 4.
Looking It Over. (28 min., 48 sec.)
                                       No. 5.
                                       No. 6.
Working With It. (28 min., 47 sec.)
Harvesting It. (28 min., 47 sec.)
                                       No. 7.
                                       No. 8.
Income From It. (28 min., 49 sec.)
                                       No. 9.
Special Uses. (28 min., 48 sec.)
                                       No. 10.
Looking Ahead. (28 min., 48 sec.)
```

Oklahoma State University, Agricultural Communications. Survival in the Christmas Tree Industry. (1 hr. 30 min.)

Oregon State University, Agricultural Communications. 1992. Shearing and Culturing Christmas Trees. (1 hr., 8 min.)

Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University Cooperative Extension Service. 1990. Shearing Christmas Trees. (30 min., 37 sec.)

Wood-Mizer Products Inc. 1993. All Products Video: Sawmills, SolarDry- & Vacu-Kilns, Multiheads & Dupil Carvers. (1 hr., 12 min.)